You can view the agenda on the website
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code
To:

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

The Chair and Members
of the Teignbridge
Highways and Traffic
Orders Committee

Date: 21 July 2021

Contact: Fiona Rutley 01392 382305
Email: fiona.rutley@devon.gov.uk

TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
Thursday, 29th July, 2021
A meeting of the Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee is to be held
on the above date at 10.30 am at Committee Suite, County Hall, Exeter to consider
the following matters.
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive
AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies for absence

2

Election of Chair
(NB: In accordance with the County Council’s Constitution, The Chair and Vice
Chair must be County Councillors. County and District Councillors may vote)

3

Election of Vice-Chair
(NB: In accordance with the County Council’s Constitution, The Chair and Vice
Chair must be County Councillors. County and District Councillors may vote)

4

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
Minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2021, attached

5

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as
matters of urgency.

6

Member Induction/Training
Presentation by the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and
Waste (note: circulated separately to Members).
MATTERS FOR DECISION

7

Shaldon Road, Newton Abbot - Request for extension of 30mph speed limit
(minute 104) (Pages 7 - 12)
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and
Waste (HIW/21/53), attached.
Electoral Divisions: Newton Abbot South, Teign Estuary

8

Rapid Charging Teignbridge (StreetHUBZ) On-street Electric Vehicle Charging
Bays (Pages 13 - 44)
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste
(HIW/21/54), attached.

9

Land adjacent to Road past Lower Cator Farm, Widecombe in the Moor Stopping up of public highway (Pages 45 - 50)
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and
Waste (HIW/21/55), attached.
Electoral Division: Bovey Rural

10

Bovey Bridge, Fore Street, Bovey Tracey - Pedestrian Proposal (Pages 51 - 52)

Devon County Council Officers have met with Bovey Tracey Town Council and
have considered a proposal for a change to the pedestrian route to improve
access to the Co-op car park on Bovey Bridge. The Town Council have
commissioned a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit. No funding has currently been
identified for the proposal (Plan attached).
Electoral Division: Bovey Rural
11

Starcross Enhancement Scheme (Pages 53 - 68)
Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment (PTE/21/30),
attached.
Electoral Division: Exminster & Haldon

12

Item raised by Councillor Cox - Air Quality (Highway Matters), Bitton Park Road,
Teignmouth
In accordance with Standing Order 23(2) Councillor Cox has requested that the
Committee consider this matter (in relation to highway matters).
Teignmouth Town Council has produced a short briefing on the issues and some
potential actions/measures regarding air quality and traffic management in Bitton
Park Road (circulated to members for information and will be available in hard
copy at the meeting).
Electoral Division: Teignmouth

13

Item raised by Councillor Cox - Teignmouth, Bitton House Parking
In accordance with Standing Order 23(2) Councillor Cox has requested that the
Committee consider this matter, following an extraordinary meeting of Teignmouth
Town Council held on 20 July 2021 which considered the implementation of pay
and display parking.
Electoral Division: Teignmouth

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION
14

Calendar of Meetings

Please use link below for County Council Calendar of Meetings;
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1
Meetings to be held at 10.30am. All meetings normally held at Teignbridge District
Council, Forde House, Newton Abbot – however please check venue in the
current situation.
2021/22:
Thursday 4 November 2021
Thursday 3 March 2022.

PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should
therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor
parking at County Hall and bus routes.
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information
see the Travel Devon webpages.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504
beforehand.
Membership of a Committee
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.
Committee Terms of Reference
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee,
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website
Public Participation
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting.
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so,
as directed by the Chair. Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed.
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic
Services Officer in attendance.
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking
place on that item.
WiFI
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.
Fire
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest
available exit following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park
behind Bellair.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.
Mobile Phones
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council
Chamber
Alternative Formats

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall,
Exeter, EX2 4QD.
Induction Loop available

Agenda Item 4
1
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4 March 2021
Present:Councillors S Barker, J Hook, J Brook (Chair), J Clatworthy, A Connett,
A Dewhirst, G Gribble, G Hook, R Peart and S Russell
Teignbridge District Council:Councillors P Bullivant and C Nuttall
Apologies:Councillors S Cook and M Hocking

*

108

Minutes
It was MOVED by Councillor Brook and SECONDED by Councillor Russell
and
RESOLVED:
(a) that the minutes of the 5 November 2020 be signed as a correct record,
subject to the following being appended to the minutes:(i) Minute 103, Monks Way, Bovey Tracey
Report number to read (HIW/20/39);
(ii) Minute 104, Shaldon Road, Newton Abbot
that Minute 104 should express the significant strength of feeling of Members
that this matter should be further considered as soon as possible due to
ongoing concerns - hence the resolution of 5 November 2020 “that a report
be brought to the next meeting to include accesses map and traffic speed
survey” (notwithstanding Officer advice as minuted, that the traffic speed
survey would be carried out when pandemic restrictions were not significantly
affecting normal traffic levels. The speed survey had not yet been carried
out).
Note: Members now advised that a detailed accesses map might be the main
consideration due to the criteria relating to frontage access in the Local Speed
Limit Policy, (whilst traffic speed data would give a fuller understanding of the
issues); and

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
2
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21

(b) that in order to progress the matter discussions be held as soon as
possible between the Chair, local County Councillor and Officers and prior to
the written report to the next meeting.
*

109

Local Waiting Restriction Programme
The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Officer for Highways,
Infrastructure Development and Waste (HIW/20/40), together with
supplementary information (plans), following statutory consultation resulting
from reviewing and rationalising existing parking arrangements.
Appendix I and the supplementary information to the Report summarised the
proposals advertised.
Appendix II detailed the objections/representations received and the County
Council’s response/recommendations, which Local County Councillors were
content with.
With regard to ENV5811/012 Teignmouth, The Rowdens, the adjoining local
County Councillor remained concerned and would welcome an opportunity for
further consideration with the Chair, local County Councillor, Officers and
herself to try to resolve the issue.
It was MOVED by Councillor Brook and SECONDED by Councillor Russell
and RESOLVED:
(a) that the work on the local waiting restriction programme be noted; and
(b) that the recommendations contained in Appendix II to Report (HIW/21/10)
be approved, subject to:- ENV5811/011 Cockwood, School Hill:(i) that the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste
be given delegated powers to determine following site inspection, in
consultation with the Chair and local County Councillor; and
(ii) that a further review of parking in the surrounding area be undertaken as
soon as possible;
-ENV5811/012 Teignmouth, The Rowdens - that the Chief Officer for
Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste be given delegated powers
to determine, in consultation with the Chair and local County Councillor (and
in discussion with the adjoining local County Councillor);
-ENV5811/013 Exminster, Jupes Close - that the proposal to introduce
No Waiting at Any Time be approved;
-ENV5811/019 Starcross, Staplake Road - that the Chief Officer for Highways,
Infrastructure Development and Waste be given delegated powers to

Page 2

Agenda Item 4
3
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21
determine the precise location of the reduced length of proposed restrictions
to allow some parking either side of the bend, following site investigation, in
consultation with the Chair and local County Councillor;
-ENV5811/020 Starcross, Church Street - that the restriction in New Road be
approved as advertised, prohibiting waiting during the daytime Monday to
Friday (8am – 4.30pm); and
-ENV5811/022 Kingsteignton, Ferncombe Drive - that No Waiting at Any Time
be approved as advertised.
*

110

Main Road, Exminster - Proposed amendments to Parking Restrictions
The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Officer for Highways,
Infrastructure Development and Waste (HIW/21/11), regarding submissions to
the statutory consultations on the Traffic Regulation and On-Street Places
Amendment Order. This Order sought to resolve discrepancies that had
come to light between that marked on the ground and what was detailed for
civil parking enforcement.
As a result of objections received from the local County Councillor and Parish
Council, it was recommended that the limited waiting bay should be reintroduced to retain short term parking for local amenities (e.g. the doctor’s
surgery, Post Office and local village shops) and this would allow the Council
to enforce it. The local County Councillor supported the report
recommendation.
It was MOVED by Councillor Connett and SECONDED by Councillor Brook
and
RESOLVED:(a) that the results of the consultation are noted; and
(b) that the limited waiting be re-introduced on Main Road, Exminster and the
Traffic Regulation Order be made and sealed.

*

111

East Street Newton Abbot - Casualty Severity Reduction Scheme
The Committee considered the Report of the Head of Planning,
Transportation and Environment (PTE/21/11) regarding proposals to improve
pedestrian safety on the A381, East Street in the vicinity of its junctions with
Scott Close and Union Street, to reduce future injury collisions identified at
this cluster site (on the border of both Newton Abbot electoral divisions). This
was a very demanding junction (i.e. primary school, doctor’s surgery, care
facility and supermarket) with a lot of pedestrian movements. The proposed
scheme sought to replace the current virtual footway and very narrow
vehicular entrance with a kerbed footway and wider entrance to the site and
relocation of the signal controlled pedestrian crossing. This required the

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
4
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21

moving a section of the gate post and wall subject to Listed Building Consent,
with delegated powers recommended to be able to agree minor
changes/respond to the planning process).
Both local County Councillors supported the report proposals having had
concerns about this junction’s safety over a long period, particularly with its
proximity to the primary school. A safer junction may also encourage more
families to walk to school. The Committee was keen that this scheme should
proceed as soon as possible.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gordon Hook and SECONDED by Councillor
J Hook and
RESOLVED:
(a) that the proposed scheme shown on plan B20003/2 in Appendix I be
approved for construction at an estimated cost of £135,000; and
(b) the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment be given delegated
powers, in consultation with the Chair of HATOC and the two local County
Councillors, to make minor amendments to the scheme details.
*

112

Shute Hill, Teignmouth - Casualty Severity Reduction Scheme
The Committee considered the Report of the Head of Planning,
Transportation and Environment (PTE/21/12) regarding proposals to replace
an existing Zebra controlled crossing with a signal controlled Puffin crossing
on the A379 near its junction with Shute Hill, to reduce future injury collisions
identified at this cluster site.
The local County Councillor supported the proposals due to the safety history
of this site over many years which was used as a busy shortcut by traffic.
It was MOVED by Councillor Russell and SECONDED by Councillor Brook
and
RESOLVED: that the proposed scheme shown on plan B20004/3A in
Appendix I be approved for construction at an estimated cost of £48,000.

*

113

Preston Village, Kingsteignton - Traffic Issues (minute 106)
The Committee considered the Report of the Chief Officer for Highways,
Infrastructure Development and Waste (HIW/20/3939), following its resolution
at the last meeting requesting further information (including details of
obstruction) about local residents’ concerns regarding parking, noise and dog
fouling, arising from frequent use of village walks by dog walkers/ commercial
dog walkers).

Page 4

Agenda Item 4
5
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21
Further correspondence had been received from a local resident supporting
residents’ parking/parking restrictions and providing photographs and
correspondence on 26 February 2021.
The local County Councillor advised that neither he or local residents could
support the report recommendation and that formal measures were needed to
address this ongoing issue. Residents’ evidence of obstruction differed from
the information Officers had obtained from the emergency services, waste &
recycling collections etc (as set out in paragraph 4 of the Report).
Whilst the local County Councillor had suggested that an approach should be
made to Cabinet for residents’ parking (as a departure from policy), he was
persuaded by the Committee’s discussion that this site did not meet the
residents’ parking policy criteria on several levels and may not provide the
best solution for residents.
The Committee however did feel that there were sufficient issues at Preston
to warrant the introduction of waiting restrictions (double yellow lines) in some
locations in the village and this was likely to be a quicker and simpler process.
Members did not feel that actions that may be taken by Teignbridge District
Council under Public Spaces Protection Orders powers were likely to be the
solution in this particular case.
It was MOVED by Councillor J Hook and SECONDED by Councillor Dewhirst
and
RESOLVED:
(a) that the contents of this report be noted; and
(b) that Officers draw up proposed waiting restrictions in consultation with the
Chair and local County Councillor as soon as possible, for inclusion within the
next annual waiting restrictions process.
*

114

Bovey Tracey Traffic Management Plan - Item raised by Councillor
Gribble
The local County Councillor had requested the Committee to consider this
matter in accordance with SO23(2). He advised that a meeting was now
arranged in the near future between Officers, the Town Council and himself
and hoped that there could be an updated position for the next meeting.

*

115

Cabinet 12 February 2021 minute 630 - 30mph speed limit in Monks Way,
Bovey Tracey
Cabinet decision 12 February 2021 (Cabinet minute 630), was noted for
information, following referral by the last meeting of this Committee (minute
103):-

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
6
TEIGNBRIDGE HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC ORDERS COMMITTEE
4/03/21

RESOLVED: that two departures from policy be agreed, to permit the
advertising of a Traffic Regulation Order; (a) to introduce a section of 40mph
speed limit from the existing 30mph terminal point to the South of Station
Road Roundabout past the Challabrook development to a point approximately
120m south of the turning into the Challabrook development (a section of
national speed limit will be retained from that point to the 30mph terminal at
the Pottery Road roundabout); and (b) that the section of new 40mph speed
limit be introduced below the normal minimum length of 600m.
*

116

Calendar of Meetings
Meetings to be held at 10.30am. All meetings normally held at Teignbridge
District Council, Forde House, Newton Abbot – however please check venue
in the current situation.
2021/22:
Thursday 10 June 2021
Thursday 4 November 2021
Thursday 3 March 2022.
Please use link below for County Council Calendar of Meetings;
http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?GL=1&bcr=1

NOTES:
1. Minutes should always be read in association with any Reports for a
complete record.
2. If the meeting has been webcast, it will be available to view on the
webcasting site for up to 12 months from the date of the meeting
DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT
The Meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 12.45 pm

Page 6

Agenda Item 7
HIW/21/53
Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee
29 July 2021
Request for extension of 30mph speed limit on Shaldon Road, Newton Abbot
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure, Development and Waste
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: It is recommended that:
(a)
(b)

The County Council’s policies on speed limits be noted; and
The speed limits remain as currently posted.

1.

Background/Introduction

The previous County Councillor for Newton Abbot South, Cllr Gordon Hook, asked
this Committee to consider extending the 30mph speed limit on Shaldon Road from
its current extent, just west of the Milber Service Station Industrial Units, to just past
the junction with Haytor drive. Currently this section is subject to a 40mph speed
limit. The speed limits on Shaldon Road are shown in the diagram in Appendix I.
2.

Main Text/Proposal

Devon County Council’s agreed speed limit policy is based on Department for
Transport guidance on setting local speed limits. The speed limit of 40mph in the
area under consideration is consistent with the approved speed limit policy. Any
departure from this policy would need Cabinet approval.
A 30mph speed limit is appropriate on a section of road in a community where at
least 20 properties front a road at a density of at least 3 properties every 100 metres.
Gateways to communities are usually the best location for a lower speed limit to start
as drivers then associate the lower speed limit with the visible development fronting
the road and adjust their speed accordingly. Where the 30mph criteria is not met,
higher speed limits such as 40mph and 50mph can be considered on strategic urban
roads and more rural roads if there is a significant history of speed related injury
collisions.
Introducing speed limits where there is little or no development visible to the driver
will usually lead to the speed limit being disregarded, which in turn could place an
unrealistic demand for enforcement on the Police. Introduction of inappropriately low
speed limits can also introduce a false expectation of low vehicle speeds to
pedestrians and other vulnerable road users, who may then take less care when
crossing the road.
Modifications to speed limits can be considered when changes to the road
environment indicate that a different limit is appropriate; this could be as a result of

Page 7

Agenda Item 7
development fronting the road or the introduction of traffic calming. There have been
no recent changes to the road layout on this section of Shaldon Road.
At the meeting of this Committee on 4 March 2021 it was recorded that Members
were advised that a detailed accesses map might be the main consideration due to
the criteria relating to frontage access in the Local Speed Limit Policy while speed
data would give a fuller understanding of the issues, and it was therefore resolved:
“that in order to progress the matter discussions be held as soon as possible
between the Chair, local County Councillor and Officers and prior to the written
report to the next meeting.”
This meeting took place on the 18 March 2021. A diagram showing the access
points is given in Appendix II. In summary the following access points were
observed:
30

Informal accesses, mostly garden gates, but approximately 10 are
unapproved vehicle accesses which do not appear to be regularly used. All
of these connect onto the verge or public footway, not directly onto the
highway.

5

Formal pedestrian access, all of which connect onto the public footway.

2

Formal pedestrian routes directly accessing onto the highway. Neither of
these are highway paths.

4

Road junctions.

3

Formal commercial vehicle entrances onto the highway

As there are only three legal accesses onto the highway, and the layout of the residential
developments clearly demonstrates that it was not intended that vehicle access should be
gained via the back gardens, it is not considered that this section of road would meet the
criteria for a 30mph speed limit.
The undertaking of a vehicle speed survey has been delayed because of the current COVID
pandemic, and its impact in traffic volumes and speeds. A survey was undertaken between
Tuesday 20 April and Monday 26 April 2021. The recording equipment was located
approximately 100m east (uphill) of the junction with the Foxhollows junction. The results are
given below. This demonstrates that the 85th percentile speed is broadly compliant with the
current 40mph speed limit.
Direction of travel
Westbound (downhill)
Eastbound (uphill)
Both Directions

Average daily
traffic flow
3,153
3,253
6,441

85th percentile
speed (mph)
39.8
40.9
40.3

Mean speed
(mph)
34.9
35.4
35.1

Analysis of collision data shows that there were 5 collisions between the Haytor drive
junction and Penn Inn Roundabout, two slight injury, two serious injury, and one fatal injury,
in the five years 2015 to 2019. Of these, one slight injury collision occurred at the junction
with St Marychurch Road and the remainder were between the end of the existing 30mph

Page 8

Agenda Item 7
speed limit and the junction with Twickenham Road. In none of these accidents was speed
given as a factor, and all appear to have occurred in low speed circumstances.

3.

Options/Alternatives

Given the absence of speed as a factor in any of the recorded collisions, and the broad
compliance with the existing speed limit, it is considered appropriate, and in line with the
County Council’s policies, that the speed limit remains at 40mph on this section of road.

4.

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

No consultation has been undertaken. If the speed limit is to be altered a Traffic Regulation
Order will be needed, and this would be advertised for public comment.

5.

Financial Considerations

The process to extend the Traffic Regulation Order for a speed limit is a formal procedure,
which includes advertisement and consultation. If significant objections are received the
matter may need to be considered once again by this Committee. The process can cost at
least £3,000, which does not include the additional cost of any signing and lighting which
may be required. No source of funding has currently been identified to cover these costs.

6.

Environmental Impact Considerations

If a lower speed was introduced and was successful in reducing vehicle speeds it may lead
to a small reduction in total emissions as vehicles use less fuel at lower speeds.
If a lower speed limit was successful in reducing vehicle speeds it may allow pedestrians to
cross the road more easily, but if it isn’t it may make the road more dangerous by giving an
expectation of lower vehicle speeds.

7.

Equality Considerations

There are not considered to be any equality issues in regard to this scheme.

8.

Legal Considerations

When making a Traffic Regulation Order it is the County Council responsibility to ensure that
all relevant legislation is complied with. This includes Section 122 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 that states that it is the duty of a local authority, so far as practicable,
secures the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic and provision of parking
facilities.

9.

Risk Management Considerations

There is a risk that if a 30mph speed limit is introduced, and is not adhered to, there may
be a false expectation of lower vehicle speeds for users of this road, including for any
pedestrians who may seek to cross the road.

10.

Public Health Impact

There are not considered to be any public health impacts in regard to this scheme.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7
11.

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

It is considered that the current speed limit regime on Shaldon Hill is correct for this particular
environment.
Meg Booth
Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure, Development and Waste

Electoral Divisions: Newton Abbot South, Teign Estuary
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for enquiries: John Fewings
Room No: Ryefields, Avery Hill, Rydon Road, Kingsteignton, TQ12 3QG
Tel No:

01392 380193

Background Paper

Date

File Ref.

Nil

jf090721teinh
sc/cr/Request for extension of 30mph speed limit on Shaldon Road Newton Abbot
02 210721

Page 10

Agenda Item 7
Appendix I
To HIW/21/53
Existing Speed limits on Shaldon Road

Existing 30mph speed
limit

Existing 40mph speed
limit

Page 11

Shaldon Road Access Points (March 2021)

Agenda Item 7

Appendix II
To HIW/21/53

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
HIW/21/54
Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee
29 July 2021
Rapid Charging Teignbridge (StreetHUBZ) On-street Electric Vehicle Charging Bays
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: It is recommended that:
(a)
work on the Electric Vehicle Charging Scheme is noted; and
(b)
the recommendations contained in Appendix II to this report are agreed.
1.

Summary

This report is to consider the submissions to the statutory consultation on the
proposed electric vehicle charging bays within the Teignbridge area.
2.

Background

In 2019 a successful funding bid to Innovate UK, a government pot investing in
science and research, enabled Devon County Council and a consortium of private
sector partners to install and operate a number of on-street electric vehicle charge
points. Together with Devon County Council the Rapid Charging Exeter consortium
consists of Wenna (a leading mobile energy operator), Co Cars, ZPN Energy (a
British provider specialising in Energy Technology), Gamma Solutions (specialising
in the development, construction and operation of green energy assets) and Regen
(a not-for-profit centre of energy expertise and market insight).
Implemented over a number of phases the project will install state-of-the-art electric
vehicle chargers in local neighbourhoods. Thus, bringing rapid, reliable charging to
residents especially those who don’t have off-street parking.
Additionally, the partnership with Co Cars car club means that in many locations
there’ll be an electric car available to hire by the hour or day, providing affordable
access to electric vehicles for everyone.
This phase of the project is for rapid electric vehicle charging hubs across
Teignbridge (with many more in the pipeline) with, generally, three dedicated public
EV bays and one Co Car bay. Each hub will have two chargers and two batteries
capable of charging four vehicles simultaneously.
Although the initial roll out is limited, there are plans to bring more to neighbourhoods
who are not being given one in this phase. As electric vehicle ownership increases,
having a local rapid charge point will become a key feature for neighbourhoods.

Page 13

Agenda Item 8
The Rapid Charging Teignbridge project forms part of the Devon Climate Emergency
Response Group (DCERG) partnership to help reduce carbon emissions in Devon.
Officers have consulted the relevant local County Councillors before they were
advertised from June to July 2021.
A summary of the proposals advertised can be found in Appendix I and the
associated plans have been attached as supplementary information to this report.
3.

Consultations/Representations

A letter drop to all residents surrounding each hub provided information about the
project, a link to the information website www.rapidchargingexeter.co.uk and a link to
the traffic regulation order consultation page.
Details of the objections received to these proposals, and the County Council’s
response are shown in Appendix II to this report.
Following the advertisement:


Proposals which did not attract objections will be implemented.



Proposals that received objections are detailed in Appendix II to this report with
recommendations for each location.

4.

Financial Considerations

The project is funded by the successful bid to Innovate UK, a government fund
investing in science and research. The County Council is a partner in the project
and not the accountable body.
5.

Legal Considerations

The lawful implications and consequences of the proposal have been considered
and taken into account in the preparation of this report.
When making a Traffic Regulation Order it is the County Council’s responsibility to
ensure that all relevant legislation is complied with. This includes Section 122 of the
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 that states that it is the duty of a local authority, so
far as practicable, secures the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic
and provision of parking facilities. It is considered that the proposals comply with
Section 122 of the Act.
6.

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

Electric vehicles reduce emissions providing cleaner air for all. This project provides
on-street charging points to all residents especially those who don’t have off-street
parking. This infrastructure will enable more residents to switch from petrol or diesel
cars to electric vehicles.

Page 14

Agenda Item 8
All the electricity used will be 100% renewable energy.
The Environmental effects of the scheme are therefore positive.
7.

Equality Considerations

There are not considered to be any equality issues associated with the proposals.
The impact will therefore be neutral.
8.

Risk Management Considerations

Careful consideration has been given to placing the rapid charging devices to
minimise any obstruction to pedestrians.
Residents of the areas where the charging points are located will receive discounted
charging rates and exclusive Co Cars membership offers.
The parking bays will be for electric vehicles only 24 hours with no maximum stay.
The vehicle must be connected to the charging device whilst in the parking bay. To
ensure the charging points remain available to as many people as possible, people
will be required to move their vehicles once charging is complete, unless staying
overnight (9pm to 7am).
From 9pm – 7am an electric vehicle can stay in the parking bay (overnight) at no
cost. From 7am to 9pm cars will receive an overstay fee if they are in the bay and
not charging. A Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) can be issued by our parking
enforcement officers to any car in the bay which is not connected to the charger.
9.

Public Health Impact

The proposal will provide rapid charging bays for those who have access to electric
vehicles. This will provide a clean safe alternative to the conventional engine,
reducing the negative environmental impact and improving air quality.
The public health impact effects of the scheme are therefore positive.
10.

Reasons for Recommendations

The provision of the chargers will encourage many more people to make their next
vehicle purchase an electric one, reducing the impact of air pollution on residents
even further. The on-street provision is particularly important to those residents who
don’t have off-street parking.
The chargers have been placed to ensure maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The locations have been selected to ensure they
are only a short walk from residential areas, ensuring they are easily available for
people. This is particularly important at night.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
Other schemes are placing charging points in many car parks across Devon.
The additional Co Cars will help to reduce reliance on car ownership which will
reduce the number of private cars on the streets, relieving the pressure on parking.
Co Cars is a flexible, affordable solution for those who need access to a car but don’t
want the costs and hassle of owning one.
The proposals contribute to the safe and expeditious movement of traffic in
Teignbridge and therefore comply with Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984.
Meg Booth
Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste
Electoral Divisions: All in Teignbridge

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for enquiries: Simon Garner
Room No: M8, Great Moor House, Bittern Road, Exeter
Tel No:

0345 155 1004

Background Paper

Date

File Ref.

Nil

sg190721teih
sc/cr/ Rapid Charging Teignbridge (StreetHUBZ) On-street Electric Vehicle Charging
Bays
04 210721

Page 16

Agenda Item
8
Appendix I
To HIW/21/54
Details of Proposals Advertised
5888 Rapid Charging Teignbridge (StreetHUBZ) On-street Electric Vehicle Charging Bays
(Electric Vehicle Recharging Point Parking & Car Club Vehicle) Amendment Order
Statement of Reasons
It is proposed to provide on-street charging points for electric vehicles at any time. The bays will be
for 24 hours with no maximum stay and the vehicle must be connected to the charging device. The
proposal will provide recharging bays for those who have access to electric vehicles by providing a
clean safe alternative to the conventional engine, reducing the negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.
In addition, it is proposed to introduce a car club bay adjacent the electric vehicle recharging bays at
Den Crescent, Teignmouth to provide sustainable mobility for all by offering access to a share
vehicle to provide an alternative to car ownership.
Specifically, the order if made will preserve or improve the amenities of the area through which the
roads run. It is proposed to provide on-street charging points for electric vehicles at any time. The
bays will be for 24 hours with no maximum stay and the vehicle must be connected to the charging
device. The proposal will provide recharging bays for those who have access to electric vehicles by
providing a clean safe alternative to the conventional engine, reducing the negative environmental
impact and improving air quality.
Councillor

Plan
Reference

Location

Parish/Town

Proposals

Jerry Brook

ENV5888/01

Court Street

Moretonhampstead

EV Charging Bays

George Gribble ENV5888/2

Mary Street

Bovey Tracey

EV Charging Bays

George Gribble ENV5888/3

St Johns Lane

Bovey Tracey

EV Charging Bays

Jerry Brook

ENV5888/4

Lawn Drive

Chudleigh

EV Charging Bays

Ron Peart

ENV5888/5

Newton Road

Kingsteignton

EV Charging Bays

Phil Bullivant

ENV5888/6

Osborne Street

Newton Abbot North EV Charging Bays

Phil Bullivant

ENV5888/7

Courtenay Park

Newton Abbot North EV Charging Bays

Phil Bullivant

ENV5888/8

St Pauls Road

Newton Abbot North EV Charging Bays

Martin Wrigley

ENV5888/9

Brunswick Place

Dawlish

David Cox

ENV5888/10

Lower Brook Street Teignmouth

EV Charging Bays

David Cox

ENV5888/11

Den Crescent

Teignmouth

EV Charging Bays

David Cox

ENV5888/12

Shute Hill

Teignmouth

EV Charging Bays

Page 17

EV Charging Bays

Agenda Item 8

Page 18

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

Agenda Item 8

Page 20

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

Agenda Item 8

Page 22

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

Agenda Item 8

Page 24

Agenda Item 8

Page 25

Agenda Item 8

Page 26

Page 27

Agenda Item 8

Agenda Item 8

Page 28

Agenda Item 8

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
Appendix II
To HIW/21/54
Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/01 Court Street, Moretonhampstead
1 respondent – Resident of Court Street
Objection
Reason for Proposal
1 respondent objects to the proposals on the Provide on-street charging points for
following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
 Difficulty in accessing a well-used
conventional engine, reducing the
vehicular access on the opposite side of
the road as the access is opposite where negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.
cars are parked in the limited waiting
bays. Difficulty will increase as the bays
will not have a time limit for staying if
Officer Comments
attached to a recharging point.
It is acknowledged that there will be an
 Where will the cars wait if all the points
impact on parking in some streets.
are occupied.
However, as the switch to electric
 The chargers are ugly.
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
having rapid chargers located close to
Suggestion
residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
1 respondent suggested that the chargers
any initial concerns.
should be located in the council run car
park.
The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
1 respondent suggested that there should
charging points around the District and to
be double yellow lines opposite the welloffer charging facilities to areas where
used vehicular access.
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
Comment

The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays
will create more problems than limited
waiting spaces.

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
Drivers waiting to use the bays will be
obliged to wait where it is safe to do so
without causing an obstruction.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term
a range of locations will be available to
suit different needs and make charging
more convenient.
It is agreed some people find the
chargers visually intrusive.
We have taken care when selecting sites
that the charge points do not sit
immediately outside of a house for
example, where the front door opens
directly onto the pavement and there may
be an obstruction issue.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.
The request for double yellow lines is
outside the scope of this scheme.
However, the suggestion will be
considered.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Comment

Devon County Council
Response

Plan ENV5888/2 Mary Street, Bovey Tracey
10 respondents - Residents of Chapel Place, Crokers Meadow, Mary Street,
Station Court and Bovey Tracey Town Council
Objection
Reason for Proposal
10 respondents object to the proposals on
Provide on-street charging points for
the following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
 3 respondents commented that
proposals would have significant adverse conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
impacts on residents and businesses.
improving air quality.
 6 respondents commented there is
already insufficient parking spaces for
the residents of Mary Street and is
severely crowded as it is.

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
 5 respondents commented that if the four
spaces are turned over to non-electric
vehicles, this will increase the existing
problem of availability.
 2 respondents commented that the
pavement width of Mary Street does not
provide the minimum 2 metre width.
 2 respondents commented that there is
insufficient pavement width creating
pinch points and restricting pedestrian
movement.
 3 respondents commented that the
residents of Mary Street do not want
electric vehicle spaces.
 1 respondent commented that nurses
and carers visiting residents need to park
in the street.
 4 respondents commented that Mary
Street has historic and listed buildings
and is in a conservation area and that
the rapid electric vehicle chargers would
have a detrimental impact on the area.
 2 respondents commented that
Teignbridge DC conservation officer and
Bovey Tracey Town Council had not
been consulted on the proposals.
 1 respondent commented that their
spouse is disabled and their car needs to
parked outside of their house for access.
This will not be possible if the electric
vehicle spaces go ahead.
 3 respondents commented that no need
had been identified by the residents of
Mary Street for electric vehicle spaces.
 1 respondent commented that nonresidents will take all-day parking spaces
whilst residents are forced to pay in the
public car park.
 2 respondents commented that the
chargers are not aesthetically pleasing
and will detract from the look and feel of
the area.
 1 respondent commented that the
electric vehicle bays would reduce the
kerbside access for essential servicing
activities for the residences.
 1 respondent commented that nearby car
parks could accommodate the
infrastructure required without creating a
further reduction and barriers to traffic
flow.

Officer Comments
It is acknowledged that there will be an
impact on parking in some streets.
However, as the switch to electric
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
having rapid chargers located close to
residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
any initial concerns.
The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
offer charging facilities to areas where
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays
will create more problems than limited
waiting spaces.
Drivers waiting to use the bays will be
obliged to wait where it is safe to do so
without causing an obstruction.
It is agreed some people find the
chargers visually intrusive.
We have taken care when selecting sites
that the charge points do not sit
immediately outside of a house for
example, where the front door opens
directly onto the pavement and there may
be an obstruction issue.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term
a range of locations will be available to

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
 1 respondent commented that the street
parking is essential for town access,
park, sport and recreational activities.
 1 respondent commented that they
would like to know what data was
gathered to show that there was no
demand for these parking spaces to
warrant their removal.
Suggestions
1 respondent suggested if consideration
could be made to residents to have reduced
parking fees in the nearby car park.
9 respondents suggested that the electric
vehicle bays should be relocated to the car
parks.
1 respondent suggested a more central
location could be found for the electric
vehicle bays.
1 respondent suggested that if the proposed
spaces were made available for actual
residents only then the proposals may be
acceptable.

suit different needs and make charging
more convenient.
The provision of a network of accessible
charging points will stimulate demand for
electric vehicles. The incoming
prohibition of new petrol and diesel
vehicles makes it more important to
provide a charging network facility which
can cope with future needs. It is not
practical to wait for the demand to appear
before belatedly providing the charging
facility required.
In the longer term more drivers will be
able to charge while their vehicle is
parked for some other purpose; e.g. while
shopping. Thus, a single bay can serve
two purposes at once, ultimately reducing
the need for some parking bays.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.

Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/3 St Johns Lane, Bovey Tracey
7 respondents – Residents of Albert Terrace, Chapel Place, Mary Street, Station
Court and Bovey Tracey Town Council
Objection
Reason for Proposal
7 respondents object to the proposals on the Provide on-street charging points for
following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
 4 respondents commented that if parking providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
spaces are taken away by electric
negative environmental impact and
vehicles bays, where do residents park
improving air quality.
their cars as there is nowhere nearby to
park their cars.
 2 respondents commented that residents Officer Comments
It is acknowledged that there will be an
do not want this.
impact on parking in some streets.
 1 respondent commented that the car
However, as the switch to electric
parks are always full during the day.
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
 3 respondents commented that the loss
having rapid chargers located close to
of limited/unrestricted parking bays
Comment

Page 33

Agenda Item 8











would have detrimental effect on local
businesses in area.
2 respondents commented that there is
no parking in Albert Terrace and always
park in S Johns Lane.
2 respondents commented that the
chargers are not aesthetically pleasing
and will detract from the look and feel of
the area.
2 respondents commented that there is
insufficient pavement width creating
pinch points and restricting pedestrian
movement.
1 respondent commented that nearby car
parks could accommodate the
infrastructure required without creating a
further reduction and barriers to traffic
flow.
1 respondent commented that the street
parking is essential for town access,
park, sport and recreational activities
including scout hut activity.
1 respondent commented that they
would like to know what data was
gathered to show that there was no
demand for these parking spaces to
warrant their removal.

Suggestion
5 respondents suggested Station Road Car
Park as an alternative location for the
electric vehicle charging points.
1 respondent suggested an alternative
location where parking is more plentiful
would be more suitable for the electric
vehicle charging points.
1 respondent suggests removing the double
yellow lines to provide more parking spaces.
5 respondents suggested further
discussions should take place with officers
from Teignbridge District Council to
progress for more appropriate locations
within off-street car parks.

residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
any initial concerns.
The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
offer charging facilities to areas where
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays
will create more problems than limited
waiting spaces.
Drivers waiting to use the bays will be
obliged to wait where it is safe to do so
without causing an obstruction.
It is agreed some people find the
chargers visually intrusive.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term
a range of locations will be available to
suit different needs and make charging
more convenient.
We have taken care when selecting sites
that the charge points do not sit
immediately outside of a house for
example, where the front door opens
directly onto the pavement and there may
be an obstruction issue.
The provision of a network of accessible
charging points will stimulate demand for
electric vehicles. The incoming
prohibition of new petrol and diesel

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
vehicles makes it more important to
provide a charging network facility which
can cope with future needs. It is not
practical to wait for the demand to appear
before belatedly providing the charging
facility required.
In the longer term more drivers will be
able to charge while their vehicle is
parked for some other purpose; e.g. while
shopping. Thus, a single bay can serve
two purposes at once, ultimately reducing
the need for some parking bays.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Devon County Council
Response

Comment
Plan ENV5888/4 Lawn Drive, Chudleigh
No comments received.

Reason for Proposal
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the proposal is implemented as advertised.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/5 Newton Road, Kingsteignton
Comment

No comments received.

Reason for Proposal
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the proposal is implemented as advertised.

Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/6 Osborne Street, Newton Abbot
1 respondent– Resident of Osborne Street
Objection
Reason for Proposal
1 respondent objects to the proposals on the Provide on-street charging points for
following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
 Residents parking Zone E is already over providing a clean safe alternative to the
sold with permit holders and is always at conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
maximum capacity.
improving air quality.
 Residents have to park in pay and
display car park instead.
Comment

Suggestion
1 respondent suggested Osborne Street Car
Park as an alternative location for the
electric vehicle charging points as the car
park is never at maximum capacity.

Officer Comments
It is acknowledged that there will be an
impact on parking in some streets.
However, as the switch to electric
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
having rapid chargers located close to
residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
any initial concerns.
The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
offer charging facilities to areas where
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays
will create more problems than limited
waiting spaces.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term
a range of locations will be available to
suit different needs and make charging
more convenient.
It is agreed some people find the
chargers visually intrusive.
The provision of a network of accessible
charging points will stimulate demand for
electric vehicles. The incoming
prohibition of new petrol and diesel
vehicles makes it more important to
provide a charging network facility which
can cope with future needs. It is not
practical to wait for the demand to appear
before belatedly providing the charging
facility required.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/7 Courtenay Park, Newton Abbot
Comment

No comments received.

Reason for Proposal
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the proposal is implemented as advertised.

Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/8 St Pauls Road, Newton Abbot
1 respondent – Business owner in St Pauls Road
Supports
Reason for Proposal
1 respondent supports the proposals on the Provide on-street charging points for
following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
 Business uses electric company
conventional engine, reducing the
vehicles.
 Electric vehicle charging infrastructure in negative environmental impact and
Teignbridge is hugely insufficient with no improving air quality.
charging stations in Newton Abbot itself.
 Charging stations in Teignbridge will
enable electric vehicle users to plan
Officer comments
journeys better and will encourage
Support noted.
electric vehicle users to the area which
will benefit the area commercially.
Comment

Suggestion
1 respondent suggests that only chargers
with a maximum output of 50kw are
installed.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/9 Brunswick Place, Dawlish
2 respondents – Residents of Brunswick Place
Objection
Reason for Proposal
2 respondents object to the proposals on
Provide on-street charging points for
the following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
 1 respondent commented on the lack of providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the negative
on-street parking in Dawlish so cannot
environmental impact and improving air
afford to lose any more spaces.
quality.
 1 respondent commented on the
impractical location for the setting up of
the charging points - significant
Officer Comments
disruption will take place.
It is acknowledged that there will be an
 1 respondent commented that the
impact on parking in some streets.
location would impact negatively on
However, as the switch to electric vehicles
visitors and residents, especially blue
accelerates, the benefits of having rapid
badge holders.
chargers located close to residents’ homes
 1 respondent commented that we
will quickly outweigh any initial concerns.
should not be taking away the few
remaining short-term parking places
The sites have all been carefully selected
away.
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
Suggestion
offer charging facilities to areas where
2 respondents suggested Barton Hill Car
having a charge point at home may not be
Park as an alternative location for the
possible.
electric vehicle charging points.
Comment

1 respondent suggests Marine Parade as
an alternative location for the electric
vehicle charging points.

The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important at
night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays will
create more problems than limited waiting
spaces.
Drivers waiting to use the bays will be
obliged to wait where it is safe to do so
without causing an obstruction.

Page 39

Agenda Item 8
It is agreed some people find the chargers
visually intrusive.
We have taken care when selecting sites
that the charge points do not sit
immediately outside of a house for
example, where the front door opens
directly onto the pavement and there may
be an obstruction issue.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term a
range of locations will be available to suit
different needs and make charging more
convenient.
The provision of a network of accessible
charging points will stimulate demand for
electric vehicles. The incoming prohibition
of new petrol and diesel vehicles makes it
more important to provide a charging
network facility which can cope with future
needs. It is not practical to wait for the
demand to appear before belatedly
providing the charging facility required.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.
Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/10 Lower Brook Street, Teignmouth
Comment

No comments received.

Reason for Proposal
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for
those who have access to an electric
vehicle by providing a clean safe
alternative to the conventional
engine, reducing the negative
environmental impact and improving
air quality.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the proposal is implemented as advertised.

Page 40

Agenda Item 8

Devon County Council
Response
Plan ENV5888/11 Den Crescent, Teignmouth
1 respondent – Resident of Brunswick Street
Objection
Reason for Proposal
1 respondent objects to the proposals on the Provide on-street charging points for
following grounds:
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
 Reduces availability in an area where it
conventional engine, reducing the
is already congested and where blue
negative environmental impact and
badge holders park on double yellow
improving air quality.
lines.
Comment

In addition, it is proposed to introduce a
car club bay adjacent the electric vehicle
recharging bays at Den Crescent,
Teignmouth to provide sustainable
mobility for all by offering access to a
share vehicle to provide an alternative to
car ownership.
Officer Comments
It is acknowledged that there will be an
impact on parking in some streets.
However, as the switch to electric
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
having rapid chargers located close to
residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
any initial concerns.
The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
offer charging facilities to areas where
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Page 41

Agenda Item 8
Devon County Council
Response

Comment
Plan ENV5888/12 Shute Hill Teignmouth
No comments received.

Reason for Proposal
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for those who
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the proposal is implemented as advertised.

Comment

Devon County Council
Response

Generic
11 respondents – residents of Bovey Tracey, Newton Abbot and Bovey Tracey
Town Council
Supports
Reason for Proposal
11 respondent supports the proposals for
Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicle recharging bays in general
electric vehicles at any time for those who
on the following grounds:
have access to an electric vehicle by
providing a clean safe alternative to the
conventional engine, reducing the
 3 respondent supports the installation of
negative environmental impact and
charging points in general.
improving air quality.
 1 respondent sees the benefit in
electrical vehicles.
 2 respondent supports the introduction of Reason for Proposal
electric vehicle bays within the Parish but Provide on-street charging points for
electric vehicles at any time for those who
the most appropriate locations would be
have access to an electric vehicle by
off-street car parks.
providing a clean safe alternative to the
 3 respondents support the need for
conventional engine, reducing the
electric charging points.
 1 respondents supports the governments negative environmental impact and
improving air quality.
objective to encourage electric cars.
 1 respondent fully supports proposals as
EV charging infrastructure in Teignbridge Officer Comments
It is acknowledged that there will be an
is hugely insufficient.
impact on parking in some streets.
 1 respondent commented that the
However, as the switch to electric
current demand for electric vehicle bays
vehicles accelerates, the benefits of
appears low as electric vehicles are not
having rapid chargers located close to
yet an efficiency nor price to allow
residents’ homes will quickly outweigh
mainstream users.
any initial concerns.

Page 42

Agenda Item 8
Suggestion
1 respondent suggests that 7kw charging
stations are not fit for purpose as they will
generally take around 8-10 hours to charge
vehicles.
Strongly recommends that that only
chargers with a maximum output of 50kw
are installed.
Careful consideration needs to be given
when choosing the charging station operator
and this needs to be as universal as
possible when it comes to the end user,
many charging stations are incompatible
with either the vehicle or the payment
method required.
5 respondents suggest further discussions
should take place with officers from
Teignbridge District Council to progress for
more appropriate locations within off-street
car parks.

The sites have all been carefully selected
to give a good geographic spread of
charging points around the District and to
offer charging facilities to areas where
having a charge point at home may not
be possible.
The chargers have been placed to ensure
maximum visibility and accessibility.
Having them in easily visible and
accessible places is an important factor in
encouraging people to use them. The
locations have been selected to ensure
they are only a short walk from residential
areas, ensuring they are easily available
for people. This is particularly important
at night.
Vehicles will only be permitted to park for
as long as it takes to charge. It is
unreasonable to assume charging bays
will create more problems than limited
waiting spaces.
Drivers waiting to use the bays will be
obliged to wait where it is safe to do so
without causing an obstruction.
It is agreed some people find the
chargers visually intrusive.
Chargers are also being proposed in
off-street car parks, as well as residential
areas and town centres. In the long term
a range of locations will be available to
suit different needs and make charging
more convenient.
We have taken care when selecting sites
that the charge points do not sit
immediately outside of a house for
example, where the front door opens
directly onto the pavement and there may
be an obstruction issue.
The provision of a network of accessible
charging points will stimulate demand for
electric vehicles. The incoming
prohibition of new petrol and diesel
vehicles makes it more important to
provide a charging network facility which
can cope with future needs. It is not

Page 43

Agenda Item 8
practical to wait for the demand to appear
before belatedly providing the charging
facility required.
In the longer term more drivers will be
able to charge while their vehicle is
parked for some other purpose; e.g. while
shopping. Thus, a single bay can serve
two purposes at once, ultimately reducing
the need for some parking bays.
Inevitably some residents will be
inconvenienced but given the UK’s
commitment to phasing out combustion
engine vehicles there is no alternative to
providing a comprehensive charging
network.
Recommendation: Implement as advertised.

Page 44

Agenda Item 9
HIW/21/55
Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee
29 July 2021
Stopping up of public highway: Land adjacent to Road past Lower Cator Farm,
Widecombe in the Moor
Report of the Chief Officer for Highways Infrastructure Development and Waste
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: It is recommended that:
(a)
the extent of highway Land adjacent to Road past Lower Cator Farm,
Widecombe in the Moor, as detailed in Appendix I, is not needed for
public use; and
(b)
this Committee resolves that subject to the consultations referred to in
section 4, Devon County Council makes an application to the
magistrates’ court for an order under Section 116 of the Highways Act
1980 that the said highway land be stopped up.
1.

Introduction

Under Section 116 of the Highways Act 1980, Devon County Council can make an
application to a magistrates’ court to stop up a section of highway if they think it is
unnecessary.
We have received representation from the landowner at Hayloft who wishes to apply
for a stopping up order so that the land in question (as shown in Appendix I) no
longer forms part of the public highway.
2.

Proposal

It is recommended that an application is made to the Magistrates' Court under
Section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 for the stopping-up of part of the public
highway adjacent to Road past Lower Cator Farm, Widecombe in the Moor as
shown on the drawing attached as Appendix I.
3.

Options/Alternatives

Devon County Council could refuse the application but would have no specific
reasons for doing so.
4.

Consultations

A number of organisations have been contacted on the proposal and a summary of
the consultees and their response can be found in Appendix II.

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
5.

Financial Considerations

There are no financial implications to this proposal as all costs will be met by the
applicant.
6.

Legal Considerations

Under Section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 a highway authority can apply to a
magistrates’ court to stop up highway on the ground that it is ‘unnecessary’.
Whether a highway is unnecessary is a question of fact. It should be unnecessary
for the sort of purpose for which the public might reasonably be expected to use it,
for example, to reach a specific destination or for recreational purposes.
Only a highway authority can apply to a magistrates’ court for a stopping up order. A
highway authority has discretion on whether or not to make an application.
However, this discretion is capable of being judicially reviewed. It should therefore
have good reason for not making an order.
7.

Environmental Impact Considerations (Including Climate Change)

There are no environmental impacts in relation to this proposal.
8.

Equality Considerations

There are no equality considerations in relation to this proposal.
9.

Risk Management Considerations

No risks have been identified.
10.

Public Health Impact

There are no implications of the proposals on public health in the area.
11.

Reasons for Recommendations

In summary it is recommended that the Committee approve the request for an
application to the magistrates’ court for a stopping up order on the Land adjacent to
Road past Lower Cator Farm, Widecombe in the Moor described above, as the land
is not needed for public use and is unnecessary as public highway.

Meg Booth
Chief Officer for Highways Infrastructure Development and Waste
Electoral Division: Bovey Rural

Page 46

Agenda Item 9
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for Enquiries: Amy Garwood
Tel No: 0345 155 1004

Room: M8 Great Moor House

Background Paper

Date

File Reference

None

ag040621teigh
sc/cr/Stopping up Lower Cator Farm Widecombe in the Moor
02 210721

Page 47

Agenda Item 9

Appendix I
To HIW/21/55

Page 48

Agenda Item 9
Appendix II
To HIW/21/55
Organisations Contacted & Response
Organisation Contacted

Response

Teignbridge District Council
Widecombe in the Moor Parish Council
Western Power Distribution PLC
Auto Cycle Union
British Driving Society
British Horse Society
Byways and Bridleways Trust
Country Land and Business
Association
Cyclists Touring Club
National Farmers Union
Natural England Consultation Service
Open Spaces Society
Devon Green Lanes Group
Ramblers
Trail Riders Fellowship
4 Wheel Vehicle Users

None received
Received 04/04/21 – No objections
None received
None received
None received
None received
Received 10/05/21 – No objections
None received
None received
None received
None received
None received
No longer in existence
None received
None received
None received

Page 49

Agenda Item 10

Page 51

Agenda Item 11
PTE/21/30
Teignbridge Highways and Traffic Orders Committee
29 July 2021
Starcross Enhancement Scheme
Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.
Recommendation: It is recommended that:
(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

1.

a traffic regulation order for new double yellow lines and single yellow lines
on the Strand, and banning of the right turn out of New Road be advertised
and, if no significant objections received, be made and sealed; and
the proposed footway widening on the A379 shown in Appendix II are trialled
and if successful included as part of the works in (c)
the proposed improvements shown plan J19020_010 included in Appendix I,
is approved for construction at an estimated cost of £70,000; and
the Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment be given delegated
powers, in consultation with the Chair of HATOC and the local member, to
make minor amendments to the scheme details.
Background/Introduction

The section of the A379 through Starcross is a well known pinch-point. The narrow
sections of road near the pillars and adjacent to the Spar can restrict traffic flow and the
narrow footways along The Strand, between New Road and the Spar, can be unattractive
to some pedestrians.
The constraints within Starcross limit the scope of any major works along the A379.
Instead, a number of modest enhancements to footways, restriction of some turning
movements and parking are proposed to improve the pedestrian environment for local
residents and vehicle flow on the A379 have been developed.
The proposals were broadly supported at public consultation undertaken in early 2020 and
amendments made in response to the feedback received.
Resurfacing of the A379 is also planned for this 2021/22 financial year, providing an
opportunity to align improvements with planned maintenance. A focus on improving
pedestrian facilities also aligns with the governments increased focus on Active Travel.
2.

Proposal

This report seeks approval for construction of enhancement in Starcross, comprising (form
south to north):
-

Build out on the northbound entry to Starcross to narrow the vehicle carriageway and
provide protected on street parking spaces. This will reinforce the entry into a
settlement to reduce approach speeds into Starcross.

Page 53

Agenda Item 11
-

-

-

Priority to traffic exiting the narrow section of The Strand (southbound), to help clear
traffic out of the narrow part of the A379 in vicinity of the convenience store.
Prohibiting motor vehicles from Church Street onto The Strand.
Provision of continuous footway across Church Street and localised footway widening
to improve pedestrian facilities on the Strand.
Widening some sections of footway on The Strand.
New stretch of footway on New Road to fill in gap in footway between southern side of
New Road and the Strand.
Banning of right turn out of New Road, which will help to reduce movements and
friction at a junction in close proximity to the pinch point at the Pillars.
Changes to bus shelter on the west of The Strand, including change of end panel from
advertising to see through panel, improving visibility between bus stop users and
cyclists. Subject to owner permission.
Single yellow lines outside the Atmospheric Railway pub. This will restrict parking
through busiest times of the day to help improve traffic flow exiting the narrow section,
but still allow parking adjacent to the pub in the evenings.
Additional double yellow lines north of the pillars, to provide additional area for large
vehicles to pass and help traffic flow exiting the narrow section.

Plans of the proposed improvements are included in the plan in Appendix I.
The proposed prohibition of some turning movements will reduce vehicle movements onto
the most constrained section of The Strand. The simplification of movements will benefit
vehicle flow and pedestrian movements on the A379.
Improvements to footway facilities at key locations will also improve access for local
residents, particularly for those that use New Road or Church Street to walk to local
amenities such as the pub and convenience store.
The locations of widening footway on the A379 have been identified from on site
observation as those locations which are both narrow (below 1.5m) and would not be
expected to impact on traffic capacity. For example, widening of footway adjacent the
pillars may help as currently some drivers, particularly unfamiliar users, can mistakenly
believe there is room for two vehicles to pass and then stop closer to the pillars where
there is less room for two vehicles to pass. Widening of the footway here to narrow the
carriageway is expected to improve this.
It is recognised that in an already constrained highway environment there is possible risk
narrowing the carriageway could impact traffic flow. The locations have been identified
through on site observations to mitigate this. In addition, it is proposed that some of the
measures could be introduced as a trial with the impact monitored. The sections of trial
are shown in Appendix II.
If approved the construction of the proposals can be delivered alongside planned
maintenance in 2021/22 financial year.
3.

Consultations/Representations/Technical Data

A public consultation on proposals for Starcross and Mamhead ran for 3 weeks from
Wednesday 15 January 2020 until Wednesday 5 February 2020.

Page 54

Agenda Item 11
There was a well attended public exhibition event in Starcross on Wednesday 15 January
2020 and the proposals and consultation questionnaire was also available online on the
Devon County Council ‘Have Your Say’ website. A total of 148 responses were received
and a number also submitted on behalf of organisations.
Starcross Parish Council supported the changes to the A379. They also requested
restricting access to/from Church Street to enable further pedestrian improvements. They
suggested a kerbside bus shelter should be investigated.
A summary of the responses from other organisations are set out below.
- The Starcross Fishing and Cruising Club supported changes to the bus stop provided
any changes did not impact the visibility of their car park access. They did not have a
view on the other sections within Starcross.
- Mamhead Parish generally supported proposals for Starcross.
- Kenton Parish Council raised concern that footway widening would worsen the
situation for vehicles on the A379 and instead suggested a traffic light system, similar
to South Town, Kenton.
- Cycling UK suggested the shelter should be moved further back to increase room for
cyclists and reduce conflict.
A summary of public responses is given below.
- There were equal levels of support and opposition for the proposed footway widening
on The Strand. The proposals were typically supported by Starcross residents, with
those from outside Starcross more likely to be against.
- 60% supported the banning of the right turn out of New Road compared to 20%
against.
- 75% were in favour of additional double yellow lines on The Strand, compared to 15%
against. Some suggested the northern set could be longer, as adjacent properties
have rear parking and that the ones near the pub should be time based restrictions.
- Proposed changes to the bus stop to reduce conflict were also broadly supported,
although feedback suggested either moving the shelter further back or to the kerbside.
- In favour of the proposed changes in the vicinity of Royal Way.
In the open responses, the most commonly raised point was for the introduction of traffic
signals in the centre of Starcross. Reasons for not pursuing this are set out in section 10.
Other commonly raised points included request for further traffic calming, additional road
markings to formalise traffic priority through the narrow section or for a bypass of
Starcross.
Following consultation, the proposals have been refined to account for comments
received. In addition to the public consultation undertaken to date, Statutory consultation
will have to take place for changes to loading (double/single yellow lines), right turn out of
New Road and restrictions on Church Street.
4.

Financial Considerations

It is estimated that the works would cost £70,000 which would be funded from Local
Transport Plan.

Page 55

Agenda Item 11
The resurfacing of the A379 is part of the maintenance capital program, and not included
in the cost of works. Undertaking maintenance and improvement works simultaneously
will reduce costs to the council and disruption to residents and users.
The cost estimate does not include any allowance for extra costs that could arise (i.e.
supplier or utility delays) should there be a further lockdowns due to changes in COVID-19
restrictions.
5.

Environmental Impact Considerations

Changes that help to reduce instances of stationary traffic on the A379 will also help to
reduce emissions. Improvements to footways will improve pedestrian facilities, boosting
people’s health and wellbeing.
There may be some slight negative impacts, due to some vehicle journeys that would have
exited via Church Street or made the right turn out of New Road being made longer.
However, the additional journey lengths are small.
On balance, the environmental impacts arising from the proposals are expected to be
slightly positive.
6.

Equality Considerations

Improvements to footways will provide benefit to pedestrians of a wide range of abilities
and confidence levels, and in particular vulnerable road users, including young people,
older people and people with disabilities.
Although some vehicle journeys maybe made slightly longer, all properties would still be
accessible by motor vehicles.
7.

Legal Considerations

The changes to double yellow lines on the Strand, restricting right turns out of New Road
and change of access at Church Street will require a statutory consultation in accordance
with The Highways Act 1980 and The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996.
When making a Traffic Regulation Order it is the County Council’s responsibility to ensure
that all relevant legislation is complied with. This includes Section 122 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 that states that it is the duty of a local authority, so far as is
practicable, to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic and
provision of parking facilities.
8.

Risk Management Considerations

As discussed in section 7, multiple elements of the scheme include legal
considerations and consultations. The progression of the scheme to construction will
be subject to the approval of the statutory and public consultations.

Page 56

Agenda Item 11
A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit has been undertaken and comments from the Road Safety
Auditors have been addressed in the design. A Stage 2 Audit has been commission and
will be required prior to construction. It is however that any further changes would be
minor and could therefore be agreed through delegated powers.
It is recognised that there is possible risk of impacting traffic flow by narrowing the
carriageway. These could initially be provided as a trial using surface mounted kerbs,
monitored and then a decision on whether to pursue these as permanent changes made
under delegated authority.
9.

Public Health Impact

The proposed upgrades will encourage sustainable travel, enabling a moderate increase in
activity levels and contribute positively to general health and wellbeing.
The changes to the A379 carriageway are expected to reduce the instances of traffic
queuing occurring in the narrow sections of The Strand, helping to reduce emissions.
10.

Options/Alternatives

A number of options have been considered for Starcross over the years, but like many
Devon settlements with constrained highway layouts it is challenging to find a suitable
solution for all users within the constraints on the A379 through Starcross.
A number of consultation responses requested traffic signals through Starcross, citing the
success of the recent scheme in Kenton. However, to provide a suitable facility where
vehicles can pass outside the signalised area (and prevent blocking back) signal heads
would need be over 200 metres apart. This is about 3 times the distance between the
signals at Kenton. This would introduce queuing throughout the day, worsening traffic
flow, pollution and air quality for dwellings in vicinity of the signals and therefore not
considered a suitable option. The access to the Cruising club car park would also be
within the signalised area, which would also be a safety concern.
It is not possible to widen the A379 between the pillars and convenience store. To widen
the road would require removal of the wall of the Starcross Fishing & Cruising club car
park. Furthermore, the wall is adjacent to the chambers of Brunel’s Atmospheric railway,
which are listed, and removal of the wall would risk damaging the chambers.
The Mamhead route provides an alternative to the A379 through Starcross for vehicles
heading to and from the A380. However, the consultation showed there was limited
support for improvements to the Mamhead Route and this scheme is not being
progressed.
The proposals in this report provide a set of deliverable improvements that will help to
improve transport conditions on the A379 through Starcross.

Page 57

Agenda Item 11
11.

Summary/Conclusions/Reasons for Recommendations

The recommendation supports enhancements to active travel and improving traffic flow in
Starcross. The proposals have been consulted on and can be delivered alongside
proposed maintenance works providing a cost effective improvement to The Strand.
Dave Black
Head of Planning, Transportation and Environment
Electoral Division: Exminster & Haldon
Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers
Contact for enquiries: Will Pratt
Room No: Transport Planning, Matford Offices, County Hall
Tel No: 01392-383000
Background Paper
1.

Date

File Reference

None

wp200721ti
sc/cr/Starcross Enhancement Scheme
02 200721

Page 58

Agenda Item 11
Appendix I
To PTE/21/30

Page 59

Agenda Item 11

Page 60

Agenda Item 11

Page 61

Agenda Item 11

Page 62

Agenda Item 11

Page 63

Agenda Item 11

Page 64

Agenda Item 11

Page 65

Agenda Item 11

Page 66

Agenda Item 11
Appendix II
To PTE/21/30

Page 67

Agenda Item 11

Page 68

